

RICK SNYDER GOVERNOR STATE OF MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS LANSING

SHELLY EDGERTON DIRECTOR

MICHIGAN BOARD OF NURSING SEPTEMBER 6, 2018 MEETING

APPROVED MINUTES

In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, 1976 PA 267, as amended, the Michigan Board of Nursing met on September 6, 2018, at the Ottawa Building, Conference Room 3, 611 West Ottawa Street, Lansing, Michigan 48933.

CALL TO ORDER

Meringa, Chairperson, called the meeting to order at 9:06 a.m.

ROLL CALL

Members Present:	Joshua Meringa, MPA, MHA, MBA, BSN, RN- BC, Chairperson Ronald Basso, Public Member, Vice Chairperson Kristin Ahrens, DNP, RN, CPNP Kathy Bouchard-Wyant, RN, BA Tatyana Chatman, LPN Sarah Coker, MSN, RN, NE-BC Jill DeVries, LPN Cynthia Fenske, RN, DNP, CNE Lori Glenn, DNP, CNM, RN (arrived 9:11 a.m.) Patricia Harney, Public Member Paula Hopper, RN, MSN Elizabeth Horton, RN, MBA Jackeline Iseler, DNP, RN, ACNS-BC Tiffany McDonald, RN Glenn O'Connor, CRNA, MS Jason, Puscas, Public Member Scott Richardson, Public Member Victoria Sachs, Public Member Cerise Tounsel, Public Member Mary VanderKolk, RN, MSN
Members Absent:	Alana Thomas, LPN Deborah Vendittelli, DNP, RN, ANP-BC
Staff Present:	Carla Chapman, Analyst, Compliance Section Andria Ditschman, Analyst, Board and Committees Section BUREAU OF PROFESSIONAL LICENSING 611 W. OTTAWA • P.O. BOX 30670 • LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909 www.michigan.gov/bpl • 517-373-8068

Michigan Board of Nursing Meeting Minutes September 6, 2018 Page 2 of 8

> LeAnn Payne, Board Support, Boards and Committees Section Kerry Przybylo, Manager, Boards and Committees Section Bridget Smith, Assistant Attorney General

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

MOTION by McDonald, seconded by DeVries, to approve the agenda as *amended to move item # 8 D. Nurse Scholarship to item 5. after the approval of the minutes.*

A voice vote followed

MOTION PREVAILED

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

MOTION by Iseler, seconded by Ahrens, to approve the minutes from June 7, 2018 as presented.

A voice vote followed

MOTION PREVAILED

Nurse Scholarship

Przybylo gave an overview of the Nurse Scholarship Program:

- Budgeted amount for scholarship: \$600,000.
- 74 schools with nursing programs were eligible to receive scholarship funds.
- 71 schools submitted the Notice of Intent to Participate in 2018.
- 68 schools received \$8,450 to distribute to scholarship recipients.
- 3 schools did not submit student applications.
- Total amount disbursed was \$574,600.
- Total unspent was \$25,400.
- Number of scholarship recipients 489.

REGULATORY MATTERS

Lindsay Ann Arambula, LPN – Petition for Reinstatement

MOTION by Bouchard-Wyant, seconded by DeVries, to accept the proposal for decision and deny the Petition for Reinstatement. In accepting the Administrative Law Judge's Conclusions of Law, the Board found the administrative law judge erroneously referenced MCL 333.16174 but ultimately based his decision on the correct criteria as outlined in MCL 333.16247.

Discussion was held.

Michigan Board of Nursing Meeting Minutes September 6, 2018 Page 3 of 8

A roll call vote was taken: Yeas: Ahrens, Bouchard-Wyant, Chatman, Coker, DeVries, Fenske, Glenn, Harney, Hopper, Horton, Iseler, McDonald, O'Connor, Puscas, Richardson, Sachs, Tounsel, VanderKolk, Basso, Meringa Nays: None

MOTION PREVAILED

Dominic DeMaggio, RN – Petition for Reinstatement

MOTION by Hopper, seconded by Bouchard-Wyant, to accept the proposal for decision and grant the Petition for Reinstatement. Within 90 days of reinstatement, the Petitioner must complete continuing education in disciplinary actions and one hour in pain management. Petitioner will be placed on probation for minimum of two years, not to exceed four years, with quarterly employer reports, HPRP evaluation and monitoring and if necessary HPRP compliance. If Petitioner is unable to obtain two years of employment during the maximum four-year period of probation, Petitioner may demonstrate safety to practice by submitting to a skills assessment program that is preapproved by the Board.

Discussion was held.

A roll call vote was taken: Yeas: Ahrens, Bouchard-Wyant, Chatman, Coker, DeVries, Fenske, Glenn, Harney, Hopper, Horton, Iseler, McDonald, O'Connor, Puscas, Richardson, Sachs, Tounsel, VanderKolk, Basso, Meringa Nays: None

MOTION PREVAILED

Meghan Bessie Nasset, LPN – Petition for Reinstatement

MOTION by Hopper, seconded by DeVries, to grant the Petition for Reinstatement. Petitioner will be placed on probation for a minimum of one year, not to exceed three years, with HPRP compliance, continuing education in disciplinary actions, to be completed in 90 days, with quarterly employer reports. If the Petitioner is unable to obtain one year of employment during the maximum three-year period of probation, the Petitioner may demonstrate safety to practice by submitting to a skills assessment program that is pre-approved by the Board.

Discussion was held.

A roll call vote was taken: Yeas: Ahrens, Bouchard-Wyant, Chatman, Coker, DeVries, Fenske, Glenn, Harney, Hopper, Horton, Iseler, McDonald, O'Connor, Puscas, Richardson, Sachs, Tounsel, VanderKolk, Basso, Meringa Nays: None Michigan Board of Nursing Meeting Minutes September 6, 2018 Page 4 of 8

MOTION PREVAILED

Erin Patti, RN – Petition for Reinstatement

MOTION by Glenn, seconded by McDonald, to grant the Petition for Reinstatement. Prior to reinstatement, the Petitioner must complete Board approved certification of skills competency. Petitioner is placed on probation for a minimum of one year, not to exceed three years, HPRP compliance, continuing education in disciplinary actions and understanding substance use disorder, to be completed within 90 days, with quarterly employer reports. If Petitioner is unable to obtain one year of employment during the maximum three-year period of probation, the Petitioner may demonstrate safety to practice by submitting to a skills assessment program that is pre-approved by the Board.

Discussion was held.

A roll call vote was taken: Yeas: Ahrens, Bouchard-Wyant, Chatman, Coker, DeVries, Fenske, Glenn, Harney, Hopper, Horton, Iseler, McDonald, O'Connor, Puscas, Richardson, Sachs, Tounsel, VanderKolk, Basso, Meringa Nays: None

MOTION PREVAILED

Linda Reed, LPN – Petition for Reinstatement

MOTION by Hopper, seconded by Bouchard-Wyant, to grant the Petition for Reinstatement if within one year, the Petitioner passes the NCLEX. Upon reinstatement, the Petitioner will be placed on probation for a minimum of one year, not to exceed three years, with quarterly employer reports. If the Petitioner is unable to obtain one year of employment during the maximum three-year period of probation, the Petitioner may demonstrate safety to practice by submitting to a skills assessment program that is pre-approved by the Board.

Discussion was held.

A roll call vote was taken: Yeas: Ahrens, Bouchard-Wyant, Chatman, Coker, DeVries, Fenske, Glenn, Harney, Hopper, Horton, Iseler, McDonald, O'Connor, Puscas, Richardson, Sachs, Tounsel, VanderKolk, Basso, Meringa Nays: None

MOTION PREVAILED

Michigan Board of Nursing Meeting Minutes September 6, 2018 Page 5 of 8

Tammy Lynn Woodberry, RN – Petition for Reinstatement

MOTION by DeVries, seconded by McDonald, to grant the Petition for Reinstatement and place the Petitioner on probation for a minimum of two years, not to exceed four years, with quarterly employer reports, and HPRP compliance. If the Petitioner is unable to obtain two years of employment during the maximum four-year period of probation, the Petitioner may demonstrate safety to practice by submitting to a skills assessment program that is pre-approved by the Board.

Discussion was held.

A roll call vote was taken: Yeas: Ahrens, Bouchard-Wyant, Chatman, Coker, DeVries, Fenske, Glenn, Harney, Hopper, Horton, Iseler, McDonald, O'Connor, Puscas, Richardson, Sachs, Tounsel, VanderKolk, Basso, Meringa Nays: None

MOTION PREVAILED

Disciplinary Subcommittee (DSC)

Harney reported that the DSC met three times since the last meeting. The DSC reviewed 146 regulatory considerations, 86 were Consent Orders and Stipulations. There was one rejection.

Harney thanked the conferees for doing such a great job.

Education Committee

Hopper directed the Board to the Nurse Education Committee LPN Minutes from August 30, 2018 and provided an overview (Addendum #1).

MOTION by Hopper, seconded by Ahrens, to accept the LPN Minutes as presented.

A voice vote followed.

MOTION PREVAILED

Hopper directed the Board to the Nurse Education Committee RN Minutes from August 30, 2018 and provided an overview (Addendum #2).

MOTION by Hopper, seconded by VanderKolk, to accept the RN Minutes as presented.

A voice vote followed.

MOTION PREVAILED

Michigan Board of Nursing Meeting Minutes September 6, 2018 Page 6 of 8

Department of Health and Human Services – Office of Nursing Policy Report

Deborah Bach-Stante gave a highlight of the "MDHHS – Office of Nursing Policy (ONP) Report," dated September 6, 2018 (Addendum #3).

OLD BUSINESS

None

NEW BUSINESS

Elections

Ditschman ran the election for Chairperson.

MOTION by Hopper, seconded by O'Connor, to re-elect Meringa as Chairperson.

A roll call vote was taken: Yeas: Ahrens, Bouchard-Wyant, Chatman, Coker, DeVries, Fenske, Glenn, Harney, Hopper, Horton, Iseler, McDonald, O'Connor, Puscas, Richardson, Sachs, Tounsel, VanderKolk, Basso, Meringa Nays: None

MOTION PREVAILED

Ditschman ran the election for Vice-Chairperson.

MOTION by McDonald, seconded by DeVries, to re-elect Basso as Vice Chairperson.

A roll call vote was taken: Yeas: Ahrens, Bouchard-Wyant, Chatman, Coker, DeVries, Fenske, Glenn, Harney, Hopper, Horton, Iseler, McDonald, O'Connor, Puscas, Richardson, Sachs, Tounsel, VanderKolk, Basso, Meringa Nays: None

MOTION PREVAILED

Committee Assignments

DSC: Bouchard-Wyant, DeVries, McDonald, Puscas, Harney (Chair) Alternates: Ahrens, Basso, Sachs

Rules: DeVries, Glenn, Iseler, Meringa, Puscas, Vendettelli, Basso (Chair)

Nurse Ed: Fenske, Glenn, Hopper, Tounsel, VanderKolk, Vendettelli

Allegations: Ahrens, Basso, Chatman, Fenske, Hopper, Horton, Glenn, O'Connor, VanderKolk, Meringa (Chair)

Michigan Board of Nursing Meeting Minutes September 6, 2018 Page 7 of 8

HPRC Appointment

Ditschman informed the Board that Lisbeth Votruba represents the nursing profession on the HPRC. Her term will expire at the end of the year. She is eligible for reappointment to the Committee. Ditschman informed the Board that they could nominate a different representative to serve on the HPRC or re-elect Lisbeth Votruba.

Rules Discussion

Ditschman informed the Board of the rule promulgation process and the status of the Nursing rules.

2019 Public Notice

The Board was given a copy of the 2019 Public Notice.

Chair Report

Meringa presented the report as follows:

June 2018

• Allegation review 0 cases (0 authorized for investigation)

9

1

3

1

4

- Summary Suspensions
- CE Review/Approvals
- Case Reviews/Conferee 1
- Compliance conferences 0
- NCSBN None

July 2018

- 19 cases (4 authorized for investigation)
- Summary Suspensions 4

Allegation review

- CE Review/Approvals
- Case Reviews/Conferee
- Compliance conferences 0
- NCSBN None

August 2018

- Allegation review 38 cases (20 authorized for investigation)
- Summary Suspensions
- CE Review/Approvals 2
- Case Reviews/Conferee 2

Michigan Board of Nursing Meeting Minutes September 6, 2018 Page 8 of 8

- Compliance conferences 0
- NCSBN None

Conferee Schedule September: Paula Hopper October: Jackeline Iseler August: Kristin Ahrens

Meringa informed the Board that Glenn and McDonald attended the NCSBN 40th Anniversary conference. Glenn and McDonald stated it was a great experience.

Department Update

Ditschman informed the Board that correspondence was received from the Michigan Nurses Foundation informing the Board that the Foundation offers scholarships for nurses who need funds for their recovery costs. Michigan nurses can learn more by going to the webpage at www.michigannursesfoundation.org.

PUBLIC COMMENT

None

ANNOUNCEMENTS

The next regularly scheduled meeting will be held November 1, 2018 at 9:00 a.m. at the Ottawa Building, 611 West Ottawa Street, Upper Level Conference Center, Conference Room 3, Lansing, Michigan.

ADJOURNMENT

MOTION by McDonald, seconded by DeVries, to adjourn the meeting at 11:56 a.m.

A voice vote was taken.

MOTION PREVAILED Minutes approved by the Board on<u>November 1, 2018</u>

Prepared by: LeAnn Payne, Board Support Bureau of Professional Licensing

September 14, 2018

EDUCATION COMMITTEE LPN MINUTES

August 30, 2018 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m.

Chairperson: Debi Vendittelli Members: C. Fenske, L. Glenn, P. Hopper, and M. VanderKolk

Informational Submissions:

Kellogg Community College: Renee Mielke is the Interim Director of Nursing from August 13, - December 20, 2018.

Oakland University: The PN program at Oakland University will be closing effective June 30, 2018. The last students finished their education in December 2017.

St. Clair County Community College: Patti Tibble, DNP, RN, CNE has replaced Cindy Nicholson as the Director of Nursing. Ms. Nicholson retired on July 1, 2018.

Site Visit Reports for Programs Seeking Initial Approval:

Ambassadors Institute: Due to the deficiencies mentioned in the site reviewer's report, the request for initial approval is denied.

Wayne County Community College: The program has been granted initial approval.

Nursing Education Program Report:

Glen Oaks Community College: The Nursing Education Program Report was approved.

Follow up on Complaint:

Dorsey Schools- Roseville: A review of the submitted documents shows that the school is in compliance with the rules.

Past Due Submissions:

Grand Rapids Community College: Self-study is past due. The program is asked to submit the self-study for the November 1, 2018 meeting.

EDUCATION COMMITTEE RN MINUTES

August 30, 2018 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m.

Chairperson: Debi Vendittelli Members: C. Fenske, L. Glenn, P. Hopper, and M. VanderKolk

PLEASE NOTE: Pursuant to MCL 333.16148(5), a Board member who is an LPN cannot vote on RN program actions.

Informational Changes:

Calvin College: Mary Molewyk Doornbos, PhD, RN has replaced Carol Rossman as the Director of Nursing.

Kellogg Community College: Renee Mielke is the Interim Director of Nursing from August 13, - December 20, 2018.

Madonna University: Judith McKenna, DNP, MSN, APRN-BC has replaced Catherine Griffin, PhD, RN as the Director of Nursing. Dr. Griffin has retired.

North Central Michigan College: Jamie Pagels, DNP has replaced Jennifer Attie, MSN, FNP-C as the Dean of Nursing, Allied Health and Sciences.

Rochester College: Effective August 1, 2018, Kimberly Nash, MSN, RN, CEN, C-NPT is the new Director of Nursing.

South University: The program discontinued admissions as of July 2, 2018.

St. Clair County Community College: Patti Tibble, DNP, RN, CNE has replaced Cindy Nicholson as the Director of Nursing. Ms. Nicholson retired on July 1, 2018.

Nursing Education Program Report:

Finlandia University: The Nursing Education Program Report was approved.

Glen Oaks Community College: The Nursing Education Program Report was approved.

Monroe County Community College: The Nursing Education Program Report was approved.

Self-Study:

Spring Arbor University: The self-study was missing signed contracts from all of the clinical partners. The program was asked to submit that documentation for the November 1, 2018 meeting. A decision on the self-study is tabled until the signed clinical contracts are submitted.

Minor Program Change:

Chamberlain University: The program will make minor revisions to its admissions policy to conditionally accept students pending receipt of official documents required for admission in order to be compliant with The Higher Education Act. The Minor Program Change is noted in the program's file.

Kellogg Community College: The program was allowed to temporarily increase student admissions in May 2017. The temporary increase was good for one year unless the program filed a Major Program Change to make the increase permanent. The program has not submitted a Major Program Change. Therefore, the maximum number of student admissions is returned to 40 students per year.

Rochester College: The program wished to add Introduction to Integrated Learning (IDS 1001) as a general education course to the degree plan for all incoming freshman pursuing a BSN. However, the increase of one credit impacts the total nursing program curriculum credits and, therefore, a Major Program Change Request must be submitted an approved before the change can be implemented.

Siena Heights University: The program will reduce the credits for Gerontology and End of Life Nursing Care from 5 credits to 2 credits. It will also increase the credits for Simulations in Clinical Reasoning from 2 credits to 3 credits. The Minor Program Change is noted in the program's file.

Major Program Change:

University of Michigan-Flint: The program wishes to shorten its curriculum from 6 semesters to 5 after admission to the nursing major. The Committee appreciated the program's efforts to streamline student education. The Major Program Change was approved.

Complaint:

North Central Michigan College: A student has alleged grade tampering. A review of a program's grading procedures is not within the authority of the board and the student must utilize the college appeals process or other available legal remedy.

Rule Change Suggestion: R 338.10305a(4) pertains to faculty requirements for a RN program. It provides that non-nursing content courses that are health-related may be taught by non-nurse faculty. The Education Committee suggested that this language be included in R 338.10305b(4) which pertains to faculty requirements for PN programs.

Past Due Submissions:

Andrews University: Self-study is past due. The program is asked to submit the self-study for the November 1, 2018 meeting.

Grand Rapids Community College: Self-study is past due. The program is asked to submit the self-study for the November 1, 2018 meeting



STATE OF MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES LANSING

NICK LYON DIRECTOR

RICK SNYDER GOVERNOR

DATE: September 6, 2018

TO: Michigan Board of Nursing

FROM: Deborah Bach-Stante

RE: <u>MDHHS – ONP Report</u>

The Michigan Department of Health and Human Services-ONP has been busy working on behalf of nurses in the state of Michigan. Following are updates to nursing efforts since the last report to the Michigan Board of Nursing.

Michigan Professional Nursing Development: \$35,864

Online transition to practice (TTP) modules were developed in each of fiscal years 2016, 2017 and 2018 covering communication, safety and evidence-based practice, respectively. The fiscal year 2016 project also included implementation of a train-the-trainer preceptor academy in all 10 Governors regions of the state. The fiscal year 2018 follow-up project includes design of the evaluation plan for this multi-year transition to practice effort as well as pilot testing of an evaluation with sites that have been identified as using the modules for transitioning nurses. At the request of the focus groups and the advisory committee, free continuing education credit has been offered for completion of the modules by licensed nurses.

The FY2019 effort will include support for hosting and maintenance of the three existing online transition to practice modules and the associated nursing continuing education, as well as updates to the design of the evaluation plan and completion of an evaluation of the transition to practice effort to determine the outcomes of the effort and inform decisions regarding whether to continue hosting these modules and/or support development of additional modules.

The completed modules may be found at the following website: http://www.MInurse.org

Nurse Mapping: \$48,320

Michigan is experiencing a shortage of healthcare professionals. Nursing shortages are expected to become more severe as the Michigan's aging population requires more healthcare and as nurses from the Baby Boomer generation retire. This web site is designed to track the number of nurses across Michigan and identify areas with the greatest need for nurses as well as the types of nurses needed in those locations.

This website focuses on data obtained from nursing licensure renewals and includes all nurses who are currently licensed to practice in Michigan. This website provides information that illustrates the distribution of nurses in Michigan, both in absolute numbers and relative to the *MDHHS - ONP Report* September 6, 2018 Page Two

state's population distribution. Information regarding the age distribution of nurses across the state is also included. The information is presented in easy to use maps, tables and charts. The FY2019 Nurse Mapping funds would support maintenance of the existing website as well as incorporation of 2018 and 2019 nursing licensure data. Current nurse mapping information may be viewed at the following website: <u>http://www.MInursemap.org</u>

Careers in Nursing Pilot: \$33,433

The state of Michigan has many identified health professional shortage areas as well as medically underserved areas, where there are enough health providers located in a designated area, but they do not choose to work there in large enough numbers to support the healthcare needs of the population living there. One solution being utilized in other states to address the health care needs in medically underserved areas is to implement programs to increase the interest and success of the local populations in pursuing health careers. In FY2017 and FY2018 the ONP has responded to information from nursing educational programs in these areas indicating that the funding they currently receive to support such efforts is inadequate, because it is all targeted at high school and college level interventions, which do not allow students to identify an interest in nursing early enough to take the right classes from 9th grade onward to allow them to be qualified at the end of high school to enter nursing educational programs. Therefore, they find that interested students may not perform well enough on entrance exams to qualify for nursing programs and those who do, often must take additional college coursework to meet prerequisites they did not complete in high school. They also find that available resources are underutilized by qualified individuals both before and following the time of college application.

The purpose of this project is to develop, pilot, and evaluate a replicable community engagement model to increase interest in and educational readiness for nursing educational programs among public school students in a medically underserved area. To this end, the ONP has spent time in FY2017 and FY2018 convening representatives from nine nursing educational programs, the Detroit Black Nurses Association, Black Nurses Rock-Detroit Chapter, the Mary Mahoney Nurses Association, the Detroit Chapter of the National Association of Hispanic Nurses, the Arab-American Nurses Association, the Philippine Nurses Association and the Detroit Public Schools Community District Career and Technical Center and Community Partnerships Office as well as guidance counselors and principals from identified middle schools in the Detroit Public Schools Community District. A framework for the pilot project has been designed and the development of partnership agreements is in process to implement and evaluate this effort in the 2018/2019 school year. Michigan Public Health Institute (MPHI) is contracted to finalize the evaluation plan, evaluate this effort and produce a report of findings.

Clinical Placement-Flint Pilot: \$88,610

Nursing educational programs throughout the state report inability to accept additional NP, BSN and ADN students due to the lack of adequate clinical placement sites. This shortage of sites has been identified to be the result of expansion of medical, physician assistant, nursing and other

MDHHS - *ONP Report* September 6, 2018 Page Three

health profession educational programs in the state. In addition, nursing educational program content is being updated to include exposure to more non-acute care settings and incorporation of education about population health and social determinants of health. In FY2016, through a grant from the ONP, MPHI conducted a survey of nursing educational programs in Michigan to determine whether clinical placement needs were being met, and if not, identify the types of clinical placements in the shortest supply and reasons provided for inability of a clinical site to provide a clinical placement opportunity. In survey responses, Michigan nursing education programs have identified clinical placement as a concern for students in both Bachelor of Science in Nursing (BSN) programs and Advanced Practice Registered Nurse (APRN) programs. The clinical placement type identified as having the most unfilled need was pediatrics. Pediatric nursing clinical placements were in short supply for BSN students in general and for APRN students in all specialties with the need for training in pediatrics. One of the reasons provided for not allowing a clinical placement was the perceived negative impact on provider productivity at the site and other responses to this question. Other responses mentioning things that impact productivity, implied a perceived negative impact of clinical placements on the productivity of providers.

Recent events in Flint that included a large population health issue and placement of Department of Education and Department of Health and Human Services expansion of nursing services in Flint provided an opportunity for Office of Nursing Policy staff to reach out to locations where nursing services were either already being expanded or a need for health education and outreach had been identified but additional services were not yet being provided despite a need for nurses. In FY2017 and FY2018, the ONP was able to pair Nurse Practitioner and Bachelor of Nursing programs with community locations that were able to develop new models for nursing clinical placements designed to provide unique educational experiences incorporating exposure to population health and the impact of social determinants of health. The FY2017 and FY2018 efforts include design and completion of an evaluation of the ability of the clinical experiences to meet the needs of the clinical placement site and the nursing students. The NP placements also incorporated a measure of the impact of the clinical placement on provider productivity. The effort involved in developing the clinical placements as well as the outcomes of the respective placements have provided additional information regarding the necessary components of successful efforts to develop new models of nursing, clinical placements. Since each clinical location only included a single clinical placement, it is not feasible to produce statistically significant results. The multi-year design of this effort provides additional cohorts to evaluate each placement site. FY2019 would include support for a single nurse practitioner placement each semester at a school-based adolescent/child health center and modifying and applying the evaluation plan to it and 6-9 BSN placements in pediatric and community health settings. The results will be combined with FY2017 and FY2018 data to provide a more comprehensive evaluation of the clinical placement settings utilized for multiple years. The results of this evaluation will inform an RFP effort that is incorporated in the Clinical Placement-Direct Nurse Readiness to Practice Project.

MDHHS - ONP Report September 6, 2018 Page Four

Nursing Licensure Survey and Workforce Analysis \$56,820

LARA has indicated that due to the inadequacy of information provided to the Board of Nursing regarding the impact of this project on nursing education and training, it will not be supported in FY2019.

Clinical Placement-Direct Care Nurse Readiness to Practice: \$122,809

In FY2018, the Office of Nursing Policy is hosting a symposium on the future models of advanced practice nursing clinical education. This symposium brings together interested representatives of all graduate nursing education programs responsible for design and approval of nurse practitioner, clinical nurse specialist and nurse midwife clinical placements and practice representatives responsible for design and approval of these placements in acute, long term and community-based care settings. These education and practice attendees will review the framework created by the American Association of Colleges of Nursing Task Force on Advanced Nursing Clinical Education Models (the chair of this taskforce is in Michigan and will present the framework), and the characteristics and outcomes of Michigan-based, Health Resource and Services Administration funded, Advanced Nursing Education-Practice Partnership Models. Following this review, participants will discuss the presentations and identify and prioritize components of the framework for future advanced practice nursing education models that are most suited to testing in Michigan. This will inform an RFP effort to be completed in FY2019 with these projects funded in the 2019/2020 school year. This means initial funding and design of the associated evaluation will begin late in the FY2019 budget year. Some of these models could include purchase of technology items or other equipment to be funded at the beginning of the program. The FY2019 funding for this effort would also be utilized to host a similar symposium for undergraduate nursing educational programs and clinical partners late in FY2019 to inform an RFP effort for the 2020/2021 school year.